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The TriaL at large of Mary Blandy, Spinfter,
at Oxford Aflizes, on Tuefday the 3d of March, 1752,
for poifoning her Father, Francis Blandy, Gent. Town-
Clerk of Henley upon Thames, Oxford/bire.

“‘*f“*i" N Saturday the 29th of laft
L2553 Month, in the Evening, the
?%Ej‘j > Hon. Mr. Baron Legge,and
‘é-[.:,q—‘f? the Hon. Mr. Baron Smytbe
DLNEE  came here, and immediate-
ly repaired to the Council-
Room, and open’d their. Commiffion for
holding the Aflizes for this County, when
they adjourned to the Divinity School,
(which was made convenient for that
Purpofe) to Menday Morning g 0’Clock.
On Sunday their Lordfhips went to
St. Mary’s Church, where an excellent
Sermon was preached by the Rev. Mr.
Barton, of New Coliege, irom the follow-
ing Words, Thou (balt not bear falfe Wit-
nefs againft thy Neighbour. '
Monday the fecond of March, the
Court being fat, a learned and excellent
Charge was given to the Grand Jury;
among other Offences, they were directed
to enquire after that of Murder ; of this

VI

Oxferd, March 5, 1752.

Crime the feveral Species were enu me-
rated. Speaking of that Sort called
Poifon, his Lordfhip obferved, that as it
was the moft dangerous, fo it was the
moft detefled of all others; that it was
ocnerally contrived and executed in fo
{fecret a Manner, that in fome Cafes, it
would, ‘humanly fpeaking, be impofiible
to find it out, did not the Finger of God
evidently point it out to us ; that formerly
this Crime had been made High Treafon,
by exprefs Statute, and the Punithment
was to be boiled to Death. This Punifh-
ment was thought too fevere, and was
therefore repealed in the Reign of Edward
That the Murder of a Hufband by
a Wife, or a Mafter or Miftrefs by a
Servant, 1s called Pettit-Treafon, and
has particular Punithment ; but that the
Murder of a Parent by a Child, called
Parricide, had no other Punithment than
common Murder * ; that the ancient

A Narions

* ¢ The Romans made no Law againft thefe execrable Perfons, as fuppofing none would be
“ fo wicked as to commit fuch Crimes, till L. Offius, about 500 Years after the Death of
¢ Numa, killed his Father ; upon which they ordered that fo flagitious a Malefaétor, fhould,
¢ upon his being apprehended, have wooden Shoes put on him, and fo haled to Goal, where he
¢ was to continue one Year, during which Time his Feet were not to touch the common
¢ Parent of Mankind, the Earth ; after that he was fcourged, and then tied up in a Leather
¢ Sack, together with a Dog, an Ape, a Cock and a Viper, and fo thrown into the next
“¢ Water that was deep enough to drown him ; and farther, if a Child was ungracious enough,
“¢ as but to ftrike his Parents, he was to have bhis Hands cut off. The old Egyptians ufed
““ to run fharp Reeds into every Part of the Bodies of Parricides, and after having thus wounded
¢ almoft every Part, threw them vpon a Heap of Thorns, and fet Fire to them.”
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Nations had not provided any particular
Punifhment, as thinking Mankind could
not be guilty of fo horrid a Crime as de-
ftroying, that Being, which under God
was the Author of their Being.

The Grand Jury having that Day
found a Bill againft Mary Blandy, Spinter,
for the Murder of her Father Francis
Biandy, late of Henley upon Thames, the
Court appointed the Trial to come on
the next Morning. .

Tuefday, March 3, the Court being
{at, about Eight o’Clock in the Morn-
ing, the Prifoner was fet to the Bar.

Pary Wianly, of the Town of Henley
upon Thames, Spinfter, was indiéted, for
that the, not having the Fear of God be-
fore her Eyes, but being moved and fe-
duced by the Inftigation of the Devil,
on the Tenth Day of Nowvember, in the
Twenty-fourth Year of his Majefty’s
Reign, and at divers Times {ince, /o wit.
on the fifth Day of Augu?, in the 25th
Year of his Majefty’s Reign, with Force
and Arms in the Parifh of Henley upon
Thames, in this County, upon the Body
of Francis Blandy, Gent. her Father, did
make an Affault, and in her Malace afore-
thought, did kill and murder, by put-
ting into fome Water-gruel, a certain
Powder called Arfnic, and afterwards
giving to him the faid Fraucis Blandy, a
Potion thereof, knowing it o be fo
mixed with the Powder aforefaid, and
afterwards, fo wit. on Tuefday the 6th
Day of the fame Month, in the fame
Year, did give to him the faid Francis,
a fecond Potion of the faid Water-gruel,
{fo mixed with the Powder aforefaid, and
to adminiftred by her the faid Mary,
he the faid Francis was poifoned, and of
which Poifon, he, the faid Francis lan-
guifhed till the fourteenth Day of the faid
Month of Auguft, and then died ; againft
the Peace of our Sovereign Lord the
King, his Crown and Dignity,

She was a fecond Time indicted on the
Coroner’s Inqueft.

The Council for the Crown were the
Hon. Mr. Bathurft ; Mr. Serjeant Hay-
ward ; Mr. Naires, Town-Clerk of Ox-
ford ; Mr. Hayes.; Mr. Ambler, and the
Hon. Mr. Barrington: And for the
Prifoner, Mr. Ford, Mr. Moreton, and
Mr. Afon.

The Council for the Crown having
opened the Indi€tment, proceeded to in-
form the Court and Jury, that this Pro-
fecution was carried on by the Order,
and at the Expence of his Majefty (who
is ever watch?ul to preferve the Lives,
Liberties and Properties of his Subjeéts)
a%aini’c the Prifoner at the Bar, for one
of the moft atrocious Crimes, the cruel,
inhuman, and deliberate Murder of her
own Father : That the Prifoner at the
Bar, Mary Blandy, was the Daughter,
and only Child of Mr. Francis Blandy,
an eminent Attorney at Law, at Henley
upon Thames, a Gentlewoman both by
her Birth and Education 3 that as fhe was
the only, fo the" was the beloved Child
of her Father, who had {pared no Ex-
pence in giving her a genteel as well as a
virtuous IEducation 3 that her Father,
indeed, had ufed this pious Fraud, (if he
might be allowed that Expreffion) in fay-
ing that her Fortune would be 10,000/
to the End he fuppofed, that his Daugh-
ter might be ‘'married fuitable to fuch a
Fortune. That about fix Years ago,
one Capt. #Willigm Henry Cranffen came
to Henley a recruiting, and there hearing
that Mils Blandy was a 10,000/. Fortune,
and having a Mind to marry this For-
tune, notwithftanding he had a Wife and
Children alive, contrived to get acquaint-
ed with this Family ; how well he fuc-
ceeded, and how fadly for 'this Family,
this unhappy Cataftrophe has fhewn,
That Mr. Blandy having been informed,
that Mr, Cranffon was married, he de-

fired
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fired his Daughter to ‘break off all Cor-
refpondence with him; that inftead of
doing fo, fhe acquainted Mr. Cranfion
with her Father’s Command, who in-
ftead of clearing his Character to her
Father’s Satisfaction, contrives the
Means, and perfwades the beloved, this
tenderly-indulged Daughter, to be an
Aéor in her Father’s Deftruction. :
That in the Month of Aduguft, 1750,
Mr. Cranffon was at Henley upon a Vific
to the unhappy Prifoner at the Bar; then
it is believed, this deep, this wicked
"Plot was contrived ; for foon after the
Capt. was gone, viz, about the 1oth of
November, we find this wicked Scheme
beginning to be put in Execution. That
about the 1oth of November Mr. Biandy
found himfelf muchdifordered, after drink-
ing fome Tea, thathe thought had an odd
Tafte, and complain’d of a violent Heart-
burn, pricking and fhooting Pains in his

Stomach and Bowels, attended with vo-

miting and purging ; that this happened
feveral Times after, but it went off again,
generally, in a few Days, but not without
leaving fuch Relicks behind, as helped
to break his Conftitution ; that Cranfion
finding his Work of Deftruction did not
go on faft enough, fends her a Letter in
Fuly, making Ufe of an allegorical Ex-
preflion, mot to [pare the Powder, in
Order to keep the Ruft off the Pebbles.
That the Tea, the Liquor it had been
before adminiftered in, was too thin to
admit of a larger Quantity at a Time ;
therefore Water Gruel, or fome fuch
thick Liquor muft be contrived, where a
large Dofe mightbe givenwithout the leaft
Sufpicion ; and accordingly on the fifth
of Auguft laft, you will find by the Wit-
neffes that will be produced, that the
Prifoner did mix a large Quantity of this
Powder in a2 Pan of Water Gruel, and
gave fome of it to her Father that Day,
and more of it the next, which produc’d

fuch terrible Effefts as to occafion his
Death on the 14th. That he would call
the Phyficians firft, and they would prove,
that what was adminiftered to the Decealed
was Poifon, and the Caufe of his Death.
Dr. dddington of Reading, and Dr.
Lewis of Oxford, were then call’d and
both fworn; and Dr. Addington faid,
That being on the yoth fent for to Mr.
Blandy, he thus made his Complaints :
That he had a violent burning and prick-
ing Pain in his Stomach, and had
had a purging and vomiting, imme-
diately after his drinking fome Water-
gruel ; that the next Day he drank fome
more Gruel out of the fame Pan, for
a Quantity of the Gruel had been boil’d
to ftand in readinefs as ufual, and upon
drinking it the fecond Time,, the Symp-

- toms returned as before; Dr. dddington

faid, that befides the Complaints above-
mentioned, he had Hiccups, cold Sweats,
great Anxieties, Prickings, all over his
Body, upon the external,, as well as the
internal Parts, which he compared to the
pricking of Needles; that he was fome-
times pretty eafy, but that the Com-
plaints fuddenly rerurned ; that he had
bloody Stools, and that he imputed the
whole to fomething he had taken that
was put into the Gruel: The following
Day and Monday he grew worfe; his
Tongue fwell’d, his Throat was excori-
ated, his Lips were dry, and on them,
and in his Noftrils were puftulous Erup-
tions ; his Eyes bloodfhed, his Funda-
ment abounded with corroding Ulcers,
his Pulfe intermitted, his Breath was in-
terrupted, his Complexion was of a
yellowith Hue, he could drink but not
fwallow, not even a Tea-fpoonful w ith-
out the greateft Difficulty. On Tue/ day
he grew worfe, and befides - thofe Com-
plaints had a Difcharge of Matter from
his Fundament, and hiccup’d like a ter-
fon bit by a mad Dog. #Wednefday he

arew



(6)

grew delirious, funk gradually, and died
about Two 0’Clock in the Afternoon :
Being afked if he thought he was poifoned,
he anfwered, he really believed he was ;
for that the Symptoms whilft living, were
like thofe who had taken Atfnic; and
the Appearance after Death, like thofe
that were poifon’d by Arfnic: The
Back and thofe Parts that he lay on,
were livid ; the Fat on the Belly was in
a State of Fluidity ; the Muicles were
pale and faccid, the Caul yellow, and next
to the Stomach and Inteftines, of a
brownith Colour ; the Heart was asif it
was variegated with many purple Spots
no Water was found in the Pericardium ;
the Lungs appeared like Bladders, half
diftended with Air, and were blotch’d
in many Places like Spots of Ink, as was
likewife the Liver, and that Part of it
that covered theStomach was particularly
dark ; in the Gall Bladder was found
a Stone ; the Bile was very fluid, and of
a dark yellow Colour, inclining to red ;
on theKidnies appeared many livid Spots,
the Stomach and Inteftines, as far as
open’d, were inflated, and contain’d
nothing but flimy bloody Froth; their
internal Coats were remarkably thin and
flabby, and all the Ruge or Wrinkles
were obliterated, and the internal Coat of
the Stomach near its upper Orifice, was

greatly inflamed and looked red, and.

trom thefe Appearances he was confirmed
in his Opinion that he was poifoned ;
befides this, he had made feveral Experi-
ments with the Powder taken out of the
Gruel, which was delivered to him by
Mr. Norten the Apoghecary, as throwing
it upon a hot Iron, boiling ten Grains in
Water, and dividing the Decodtion after
filering 1t, into five equal Parts ; into one
he had put Oil of Vitriol ; ‘into another
Tarrar; into the third Spiritof Sal Ar-
moniac ; the fourth Spirit of Salt; and
into the fifth Spirits of Wine; that he
had tryed it likewife with Syrop of
Violets, and that he had the fame Quan-

tity of white Arfnic, which he bought
in Reading, and made the like Experi-
ments, and it anfwered exaétly in every
one of them, and therefore he believed it
to be white Arfhnic.

Dr. Addington further depofed, that
Mr. Blandy told him, that he fufpected
he had taken Poifon, and that he believed
it came to his Daughter with the Scotch
Pebbles, for he was always worfe after a
Prefent of thofle damned Scofch Pebbles
were received, and befides, that he re-
membered to have heard Cranflon talk
very learnedly upon Poifons; that when
he, this Witnefs, alked Mr., Blandy who
he imagined gave him this Poifon, he
replied, with Tears in his Eyes, though

‘with a forced Smile, A4 poor Love-fick

Girly, but Iforgive ber.

He was then afked by the King’s
Council, if he was fure that the Poifon
the Deceafed had taken, was the Caufe

~of his Death ; Dr, 4ddington replied, he

was fure that it was,

Dr. Lewis having been fworn at the
fame Time with Dr. Addington, and
ftood in Court clefe by him, while he
gave his Evidence, was afked by the
King’s Council, if he was prefent at the
opening of Mr. Blandy, -and whether
thofe Obfervations that were made by
Dr. Addingten were true; he faid he was
prefent, and. that he made the fame Ob-
fervations himfelf, excepting the Spots on
his Heart.

He was then afked, what was his
Opinion of the Caufe of the Death of
Mr. Blandy ; his Anfwer was, by Poifon
abfolutely.

Benjaimin Norten, Apothecary, at Hen-
ly upen Thames, depofed, That he was cal-

* ledto Mr. Blandy, Tuefday Auguft 6th, and

found him complaining of a violent Pain
in his Stomach and Bowels, attended
with a violent Purging and Vomiting ;
that on the 7hurfday Morning following
Sufannab Gunnell fent to him, and faid fhe

fhould
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thould be glad to confult about fome
Water-Gruel which fhe had left with Mrs.

Norton: She always behaved like a
dutiful Daughter, as far as 1 ever knew ;

Mountney, whichwasthe Remainderofwhat and feemed to do every Thing in her

Mr. Blandy her Mafter had eat part of ;
that he went and examin’d it, and
being afk’d by them, if he knew what it
was that was in it, he anfwer’d them,
he could not be very pofiitive ; but let

it be what it would, he was fure it could

not have any Bufinefs there ; that he
took it from the Gruel upon fome white
Paper, and left it with Mrs. Mountney to
dry; that when it was dry, he burnt
Part of it with a hot Poker, and faid itap-
pear’d to him to be of the Arfnic Kind;
and that another Part of it he had de-
liver’d to Dr. Addingten ; and the Re-
mainder he produc’d in Court, feal’d u
under the Seals of the Earl of Maccles-
field and Lord Cadagan.

On his crofs Examination by the Pri-
foner’s Council, he was atked when he
apprehended Mr. Blandy firft to be in
Danger, and he‘reply’d on Saturday the
10th of Auguft.

Prifoner’s Council. Did not Mifs Blandy
mnfit upon having your Opinion if a
Phyfician was neceflary ; and what was
your Anfwer ?

Norton. She did 3 and I told her I
thought it was; but that I would not
have her fend for one without her Fa-
ther’s Knowledge.

Prif. Coun. Did fhe fend for one,
and when ?

Nortor. Mr Blandy was afked if Dr.
Addington thould be {ent for, he replyed,
ftay till To-morrow, and if I am not
better fend for him. When Mifs was
told this, the faid, that will not fatisfy
e, I will fend for bim immediately 5 which
fhe did.

Prif. Coun. During the Time of Mr.
Blandy’s llinefs, what was her Behaviour?
and did fhe not do every Thing that an
affectionate Child could do towards her
Father’s Recovery ?

Power towards her Father’s Recovery.

King’s Coun. Did fhe tell you that the
had put any Thing into her Father's
Gruel, and that fhe fear’d it mizht in
fome Meafure occafion his Death ?

Norton. She never did.

King’s Coun. What do you think was
the Caufe of Mr. Blandy’s Death ?

Norton. That he was poifon’d.

Mary Mountney being fworn, faid, That
on the 8th of Auguft latt, Sufannab Gun-
nell came to her Houfe, and brought a
Pan with fome Gruel in it, and defired
this Witnefs to look at it, for fhe fear-
ed there was fomething in it that fhould
not be ; that upon this Witnefs’s look-
ing at it, fhe was of the fame Opinion 3
that Gunnell left the Pan with the Gruel
in it with her, defiring this Witnefs to
fthew it to Mr. Norton the Apothecary,
and defire his Opinion of it ; that this
Witnefs did fhew it to Mr. Norton,
who infpected it, and faid, tkat what-
ever it was, it bad no Bufinefs there 5 that
Mr. Norton defired fome white Paper,
which fhe gave him ; that then Mr.
Norton took the Sedement at the Bottom,
put it on the Paper, and gave it to this
Witnels to keep rtill it was dry; that
then this Witnefs locked it up, till the
11th of the fame Month, and then de--
liver'd it to Mr. Norton,

Crofs- Examined.
Prif. Coun. Are you fur: that the

' Powder you deliverd to Mr. Norton

was the fame you receiv’d from Sufannab
Gunnell ?

Mountney. Yes, becaufe it was never
out of my Cuftody from the Time I re-
ceiv’d it from Gumnell, to the Time | de-
livered it to Mr. Norton.

Prif. Coun. Could no other Perfon
have Accefs to the Place where you kept
this Powder in that Time?

B Mowntney
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Meuniney. No one could get at it, for
I lockt it up, and kept the Key in my
Pocket,

Sufannab Gunnell, the Chamber-maid,
being call’d and fworn, faid, That on
Manday the 5th of .rfzfgsrﬁ latt her
Mafter was not very well, and defired to
have fome Water-gruel before he laid
down; that Mifs Blandy, the Prifoner at
the Bar, carried him about half a Pint,
which he drank, and was immediately
fick, and call’d for a Bafon to be brought
up to his Room ; and that fhe, this Wit-
nefs, carry’d up a clean one: Being
ask’d if he had made Ufe of it, fhe an-
fwered Yes, and difcharg’d into it about
half a Pint 5 that he complain’d of vio-
lent Pains in his Stomach and Bowels 3
‘that next Morning he fent for Mr. Norton,
who gave him fomething, and he was
-eafier ; that in the Afternoon Robert
Harman brought Orders from his Mafter
to have a little Water-gruel warm’d in-
ftantly ; that the warm’d it accordingly,
and the Prifoner carried it to her Father;
that he drank that alfo, and was imme-
diately affected in the {ame Manner as
before, but more violently ; that on #ed-
nefday Morning her Mafter took Phyfick,
and Mifs told her, her Father would want

Water-gruel ; and on this Witnefs’s fay-,

ing the would leave her Ironing and make
fome, Mifs Blandy reply’d, there’s no
Occafion for that, the Gruel in the Pan
aill ferve ; that thinking that too ftale,
and having tafted it the Day before, and
imagining it tafted ill, the went and tafted
it a fecond Time, when, upon lifting the
Pan to her Mouth, the obferv’d a white
Settling at the Eottom ; and that upon
fecing it fo white, fhe felt it between
her Finger and Thumb, and found it
gritty ; that fhe then went into the
Kitchen to Betty Binfield, the Cook-maid,
and defired the would look at it, for the
QOatmeal was very white; that Betsy
faid Oatmeal, why ’tis as white as Flour ;

yes, anfwered this Witnefs, but it feels
more gritty than any we ever had ; that
this Witnefs then took it to the Door,
when it appear’d ftill more white ;
whereupon fhe immediately recollected
that fhe had been told that Poifon was
white and gritty ; and it then came inte
her Mind, that her Mafler’s Diforder
was occafioned by Poifon ? and fhe im-
mediately took the Pan to Mrs. Mount-
aey, told her what fhe fui'pt&ed and de-
fired her to fhew it to Mr. Nurton the
Apothecary : Being afk’d who fhe be-

lieved put that white Stuff into the Gruel,

fhe faid the Prifoner : BunE afked “hy
fthe fufpected her, reply’d, that the
Mand.sp}r before, when the Gruel was made,
Mifs Blandy was fome Time in the Pan-
try ftirring it, and then coming into
the Kitchen, fhe faid, I have been flir-
ring the Gruel, and eating fome of the
Oatmeal out of it, for I have taken a
great Fanc'_.r to it, and believe I fhall
often eat it out of my Father’s Gruel.---
That on Friday the gth, fhe told Mr.
Stevens, her® Mafter’s Brother-in-law,
what fhe fufpected, and defired him to
acquaint her Mafter, who faid, that he
could not bear to doit; that fhe con-
tinued very uneafy, and on Saiurday
Morning the 1oth came to a Refolution
to acquaint her Mafter herfelf, which'fhe
accordingly did, and begg’d he would
let his'Daughter fée him as little as pof-
fible ; that he accordingly forbid her
from coming into his Chamber ; and then
faid, Ob! that damr’d FVillain Cranfton,
that bas eat of the beft, and drank of the
beft that my Houfe afforded, to: ferve me
thus, and to ruin my poor love-fick Girl.--=
That on Monday, at Mifs’s Requeft, her
Father canfented to fee her; that fhe,
this Witnefs, was prefent when Mifs
came into the Chamber, and feil down
upon her Knees, and faid, Ob! Sir, for-

give me, fend me where you will, and Pll

never fee or bear frgm, erwrive to Cranfton
ingre
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meve 5 Jo you do but forgive me F[ball be
bappy. To which Mr. Blandy reply’d,
1 do forgive thee, but thou fhoulst’ft bave
remembred I am your Fatber, but for
that Villain Cranlton, if thou bad t loved
me, thou would [t curfe bim and the Ground
be walks upen. Upon this Mifs faid, Ob
Sir 1 your Kindnefs to me firikes Daggers to
wmy Soul y Sir, I wuft down on my Knees
and pray that you will not curfe me; he
reply’d, [ curfe thee! no Child I blefs thee,
ard bope God will blefs thee,and I pray thou
may'ft live to repent and amend. Leave
e leaff thon jbouldf} fay fomething to thy
Prejudice s go to thy Uncle Stevens, he
will take Care of thee 5 alafs, peor Man,
I am forry for bim. Mifs then declared
the was innocent of his lllnefs, when
this Witnefs reply’d, fhe was afraid the
was not quite innocent, and that fome
of the Powder was in fuch Hands as
would appear againit her.

King’s Council. Did you never hear
any Stories about Mtfick or Apparitions
in the Houfe

Gunnell. Yes, I have heard Mifs
Blandy fay the had heard 'Mufick in the
Houfe, and that the Captain had feen an
Apparition,

King’s Council. Did you ever hear
your Miftiels fay how leng her Father
would live ? : '

Gunnell. 1 have heard Mifs fay, that
thole Tokens w ere Signs of Death in
ithe Family, and that i"m or her Father
would quic kly die ;. but fhe believ’d it
was for her Father, for Mr. Cranfon
had been with an old Woman in Scotland
who had told the Captain he could not
live tll Ofeber.

King’s Cowncil. Pray did ycru ever
hear the Prifoner fpeak u-ar (pettinlly
of, her Father,

Guanell. Yes, once when Mr. Biundy
had been 2 wery with her :=.5.3'_*;:': :‘1,[3 n
WCranjton, (he. {aid, - be was ax old rr’;'-“”"

and a Villsin, but _,,a“f, ild be quit af 'be

Encumbrance fhortly, aud then [be would
go andlivein Scotland with Lady Cranftos.
Crofs Examination.

Prif. Coun. Did not Mifs Blandy be-
have withthe'due Refpect that might be
expected from a Daughter during her Fa-
ther’s Iilnefs ? and was fhe not willing
for him to have Advice and Affiftance ¢

Gunnell. She behav’d differently at
different - Times; at {fometimes with
great Refpect, and at others call’d him
Names.

Prif. Coun. But pray, I would ask
you upon your Qath whether the Pr-
foner was or was not, a dutiful Daugh-
ter, fave at fuch Times as Words in
the Family might arife ?

Gunnell. -She appeared to be fo, ex-
cept at fuch Times as my Mafter had
been chiding her about Mr. Cranfton.

King’s Council. Pray did not’ you
drink 2 Difh of Tea that difordered

ou.

! Gunnell. 1 poured out a Difh of Tea
that was in the Pet, and drank it, I
thought it tafted a little oddly and I
thought fomebody had been taking Salts
out ef the Difth, and had nagr rinced it
afterwards. A little after I had drank
it, I found myfelf very much difordered
with vomitting and purging, and a great
Drought, but I grew better in a Day
or two, nor had [ any fufpicion that there
had been any Poifon in the Cup.

King’s Council Do you recolleét that
one Emmet a Wather-woman had been
ill with drinking any Tea or Water
Gruel ; and tell the Court how it
wWds.

Gunuell. Ann Emmet fometime before
m} Mafter’s laft Illnefs, {m* Time fhe

ald not recolleét) had L rank a Difh of
J.Ll that was pow hd out for her Mafter,
who had lefr it ; that foon -afterwards
Emmet wias taken very ill with a violent
Vomiting and Purging, and Griping 2nd

great Thirft 5 thac Mifs being informed
of
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of her Illnefs, and that {he wanted fomething
to drink, would not {end her any fmall Beer, but
fent her a large Quantity of weak Broth and
White Wine Whey. That J#ednefday the 7th of
Augrfi Mrs. Emmeteat fome of the Water Gruel
that was left by her Mafter the Day before, and
was immediately taken with Vomiting and
Purging, and went to the Necellary-Houfe,
and was not able toreturn in near two Hours ;
that this Witnels gave Emmet fome Surfeit
Water, and what the, this Witnefs, thought
would do her good ; that Lmmes remained ill
a long Time, nor is fhe recovred yet : That
this Witnefs went and acquainted the Prifoner
with poor Ann Emmet’s llnefs, who faid, / am
glad I was not up at that time, for it would grieve
me to fee the poor Creature in Pain,

King’s Coun. Did youever fee Mils Blandy

" burn any Papers and when

Gumnell, On the Saturday my Mafter had
forbid Mifs coming to his Chamber, in the Af-
ternoon, fhe brought a great many Papers in
her Apron downintothe Kitchen, and put
them on the Fire, then thruft them into it
with a Stick, and faid New, thank Ged Tam
pretty eafy, and then wentout of the Kitchen
that this Witnefs and Elizabeth Birfield were
in the Kitchen at the fame Time ; thatthey
obferving fomething to burn biue ; it was ra-
ked out and found to be a Paper of Powder
that was not quite confumed, that there was
this Infcription on the Paper, Powder 1o ¢ an
Pebbles, and that this Paper fhie, this Witpefs
delivered to Dr. Addingten  Being thewn a
Paper with the above Infcription on it, partly
burnt, fhe faid fhe believed that Paper to be
the fame the Prifoner put in the Fire and that
fhe rook out.

Being afked by the King’s Council, if the did
not recollect her Mafter to mention any thing
to her about Letters, at the Time when fhe ex-
prefled her Fears to him concerning his bein
poifoned, by his Daughter, fhe faid yes, her
Mafter direéted her that when fhe went into
her Miftrefs’s dreffing Room, if fhe found any
Letters that came from Cranflen to take them
and bring them to him. That this Witnefs
told her Mafter that the defired to be excufed
that Command, for tho’ it might be right in
mm as her Father to take her, Letters, it
could not be fo in this Witnefs, being onlya
Servant.

Llizabeth Binfield, the Cook-Maid, depos’d,
That on A.aday the 5th of Auguff laft, a Pan

of Water-gruel was made for her Maffer, the
Deceafed Mr. Blandy ; that Mifs Blandy, the
Prifoner at the Bar, came into the K itchen, and
faid, Betty, 1 bave been flirring your Water-gruel,
and eating fome of the Uatmeal, and believe { fhalt
ofien eat Jome out of my Father’s Gruel. That
that Evening her Mafter had fome of the Gruel,
and was taken very ill after it ; that the nexc
Day Mr. Norten the Apothecary was fent for,
and that toward the Evening her Mafter was
better ; but the next Day he drank fome
more (sruel, and was worfe than before, with
vomiting and purging, and complain’d that he
had a Ball of Fire in his Guts. That the
next Day, Wednefday, Sufan Guanell broughe
a Pan with fome Gruel in it into the Kitchen,
and faid, Betty, did you ever fee any Oatmeal

Jo white ? that this Witnefls reply’d, QOat-

meal | ’tis more like Flour ; that Sufan faid,
I never faw any fo gritty in my Life ; that
then Sufan took the Pan to Mrs. Mountney’s.
Thawghe Friday after, her Mafter and Mifs
were in the Kitchen, her Mafter f{aid to this
Witnefls, Betty, what Day of the Month is
this # whick being informed of, he replied.
about this Time of the Y ear Queen 4nne was
poifoned, I remember, continued he, that a
leng while ago, being 1n Company at the® Red-
Lian, they gave us fome damn’d Swuff that
poifon’d us all, one died prefently after, ano-
ther is dead fince, and now I fear "tis my Fate
to be poifoned at Jaft. That Mifs feemed
much {urprized, but with a forced Smile, faid,
I remember 1t wery well, Papa, ’tis twenty Year:
age, and went away immediately.

King's Council. Do you remember your
Mafter to fay, what Wine it was, they were
poifoned with, and how it came to poifon
them ?

Binfield. My Mafter faid it was Bottoms of
Wine that bad been refined ; and that they
ufed Arfnick to refine it.

This Witnefs was afked, if fhe ever heard
the Prifoner ufe any indecent Expreflions a-
gainft her Father, and what they were? re-
plied, many Times; fometimes fhe damned
him for an old Rafcal; at other Times, fhe
faid he was an old Rogue, and that one Time
particularly, fhe heard the Prifoner fay, /7hs
world not gma’ an old Father to Hell for Ten
Thoufand Pounds &

Being afked by the King’s Council, if the
Prifoner was not in a great Paffion when fhe
exprefled herfelf in that Manner ? Replied no ;

fhe



{ %57

fhe was inas geod a2 Humour as ever fhe was

inhet Life, talking with this Witnels about ‘

oung Women that were kept out of their
ortunes by Fathers and Guardians.

King's Coumcil.  Did you ever hear the Pri-
foner fay any Thing about Mulick that was
heard in the Houfe, or about any Apparitions ?

Binfield. Mils Blandy faid, that fhe had
many Times heard Mufick in the Houfe, and
that Capt. Cranfion had feen her Father’s
Apparition in Jeotland. :

King’s Councal.  Did you ever hear the Pri-
foner fay when her Fatherwould die ? .

Bin_[ﬁe!.i. Mifs Blandy faid, that the Mufic
foretold the Death of fome of their Family,
and fhe believed it muft be either her Father or

“herfelf ; that indeed fhe believed it was her
Father, for Capt. Cranflen had been told by a
cunning Woman, whofe Name was Adorgan,
that lived either in Londsn or Scatland, that my
Mafter would die before Offsber next.

King's Coun. Did you ever hear your Miftrefs
fay, what fhe would do with herfelf whenever
her Father fhould die ?

Binficld, The Prifoner faid, if fhe out-lived
her Father, fhe would leave this Place where
fhe was furrounded with Enemies, and go to
Scotland, and live with Lady Cranjfon.

King’s Coun. 'When your Mafter was dead,
had you not fome particular Converfation with
the Prifoner # Recollett yourfelf, and tell my
Lords and the Jury what it was.

Binfield. After my Mafter was dead, the
Prifoner faid to me, if you will go with me,
your Fortune will be made, I atked her what
fhe wanted me to do ; who replied, only to go
and hire a Poft-Chaife to go to Lendon ; 1 will
give you fifteen Guineas now, and ten more
when we come ta Londen. 1 was'thocked at
the Propofal, and fo 1 told her, and abfolutely
refufed her Requeft. On this the put on a forted
Laugh, and iaid, I was only joaking with
Ol
. King’s Coun. Do you knew any Thing of
Sufan Guunell, the 15t Witnefs, being at any
Time ill, and what was the Caule of it ?

Binfield.  Sufan Gunnell had been very ill
fome little Time before my Mafler’s laft Iil-
nefs. I told the Prifoner of it, who faid,
Sure Sufan has not been eating any of my Father's
IFater-gruel, for I bave been told that Qatmeal
i1 not good for me, and I am fure it is not for ber ;
tell Ler ;}F Jbe eats my Father’s FPater-gruel it will
48 For DEr,

Crofs- Examined.

Prif. Coun, You have given fome extra-
ordinary Account of fome paffionate Expref-
fions of Mifs Blandy ; I afk you upon your
Qath, have you not heard her fpeak very af-
%élinna:ely of her Father, and pray for his

ife.

Binfield. Sometimes indeed fhe has fpoke
refpetfully, and exprefs’d a Defire of his long
Life, but at other T'imes fhe has damn’d him,
and withed him at Hell; juft asfhe was in
Humour, the would fpeak well or ill of him.

Prif. Coun. Have you never exprefied any
particular Ill towards the unhappy Prifoner at
the Bar.

Binfield, No, I never did.

Prif. Coun. Have you not faid, when fpeak-
ing of her, that you hoped the black Bitch
would mount a Ladder, and fwing ; and that
you would do all in your Power to caufe it, or
Words to that Effeét ?

Binfield. 1 never did, ner had I any ill
Will to her ; what I have fworn, is for the
Sake of Juftice, and nothing but the Truth.

Alice Emmet was next call’d, who depos’d,
That fhe had been with Mifs Blandy in the
Hay Harveft, to tell her, that her Mother,
Ann Emmet was very ill, and extremely thirfty;
and Mifs Blandy gave her fome White Wine
Whey, and weak Broth for her Mother, and
faid, fhe was forry fhe was ill.

This Witnefs was afk’d, if fhe had told
Mifs Blandy what her Mother’s Illnefs was, the
faid No ; for that the did not know, only that
her Mother was very thirlty.

Mr. Litileton, Mr. Blandy’s Clerk, being
next call’d and {worn, faid, That he had been
out of Henley to vifit his Father in W arwick-
fhirey and on his Return on Saturday Morning
the 10th of Auguft laft, he breakfafted with
his Mafter, the Deceafed, and the Prifoner,
and found his Mafter much difordered ; that
Mifs poured out a Difh of Tea for her Father,
which he dilliked, -and faid to her, There is 100
much black Pewder in it 5 upon which fhe feem-
ed confufed, and feemed to have a Tremor on
her, and went out of the Room ; that the
Decealed then took the Cup with the Tea, and
poured it into the Cat’s Bafon, that flood in
the Window,; and went away, and would eat
no more Breakfaft ; that then Mifs came into
the Room to this Witnefs, and atk’d him what
her Iather had faid, and he told her, that her
Father had throwntheTea intothe Cat’s Bafon; »

C and
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and that he had left the Room, feemingly dif-
pleafed, and would not eat any more Break-
faft, but that he had faid nothing. The next
Day he, this Witnefs, went to Church, but
Mifs did not; and when he came Home, Mifs
afked him to take a Walk with her and her
Father in the Garden. As they went into
the Garden, fhe put a Letter into his Hand,
and defired him to dire it as ufual to Capt,
Cranffon, and put it into the Poft ; but he
hearing that his Mafter was poifoned, and
Mifs fufpeéted, he broke the Letter open,
read it, and then carried it to his Mafter,
who faid, Ab! my peor love-fick Givl ; but whar
will not @ Foman do for a Man that fbe loves !

Then the Letter was produced and {worn
to, by Mr. Litt/eton, and read as follows,

Dear Wirry,

M ¥ Father is fo bad, that I have only Time to

tell you, that if you do not bear from me
foon again, do not be frichtened ; Lam better myjelf
and left any Accident fhould happen to your Letters,
take Care what you write. My fincere Compli-
ments.

1 am ever your’s,

Coun, for the Crown. Mr, Littleton, pray do
you know, if that is the Hand-Writing of the
Prifoner ! He replied he could not be certain,
as fhe could write much better ; but he was
very fure it was the very Letter the had de-
livered to him, and that it was fealed with
three Wafers ; one in the Middle, and one at
each End,

Robert Harman was next called, and fworn.

Coun, for the Crown, Mr. Harman, Did
your young Miftefs at the Bar ask you to go
away with her, after your Mafter was dead ?

Harman, Yes; Mifs Blandy afked me if I
had got any other Mafter, and I {aid no; and
then the afked me if T would live along with
her, and I alfo faid no; that then fhe afked
me if I would go away along with her, if I
would, it fhould be worth sool to me. I
then afked her where we were to go, and fhe
faid to Londan ; 1 alked her then if we were to
ﬁ:- to the North frem thence, and fhe replied,

0, perhaps to the Weft; and I afking again
if we were to go by Sea er Land, fhe faid per-
haps by Sea and Land too.

Ricoard Fifher was next called and fworn,
who faid he was on the Coroner’s Inqueft, and
* on hearing that Mifs Blandy was gone to the
Angely he went after her ; that he fpoke with

her there, and ask’d het if fhe would not re=
tura home with him ; fhe anfwer’d yes, but
fhe was afraid of being infulted by the Mob,
and begg’d he would protect her ; that upon
this he got a clofe Poft Chaife and brought her
home j that upon her coming to her Father's
Houfe, and talking of the Affair, fhe ask’d
him what could be done for her ; that he an-
fwerd if the could produce any Thing that
would fix it upon Crenflon, poffibly fhe might
be fav’d; that upon this, in fome Agony, fhe
anfwerd, I'm afraid I have defirey’d that
which weuld have hanged that Villain ; but here
take this Key, fearch my Drawers, and fee if
you can find any Papers that will be of fervice ;
that there being a Geéntlewoman there who
better knew the Honfe than himfelf, hLe de-
clin’d going, and defir’'d her to fearch; that
fhe did accordingly, but could find nothing of
Confequence.

Prif. Goun. Do you Mr. Fijber believe that
the Prifoner had any Intention to go off, from
what appeared to you, and if [he was not very
ready to come back with you from the Angel,

Fifber, She was very ready to come back,
and defired me to proteft her from the Mob,.
and it did not appear to me [he had any Defign.
to make an Efcape.

Mirs. Lane being called and fworn, faid, that
fhe went into the Angel to her Hufband, who
was there, and Mifs Blanay was with bhim ;
that fhe heard her Hufband fay to the Prifoner,
when fhe firt went in, If you are innocent, you
will be acquitted, and if you are guilty, you will
be punifbed according to Law 3 that upon this,
Mifs Blandy ftamped upon the Fleor, in a
feeming Agony, and faid, Ob that damned
Fillain Cranfton! my Honour to bim has been
my Ruin. Then turning about, after a fhort
Paufe, faid, But why do I blame bim? I am
more to blame 3 it was I adminiflered ity and
knew the Confeguence.

Here the Prifoner’s Council afked this Wit~
nefs if fhe was fure, on her Oath, that Mifs
Blandy faid #nsw the Confequence, or fnew
the Confequence, as there was a great Diffe-
rence in the Expreflion, by the different
Meaning of the two Words.

Mrs. Lane, It being fo long ago, and
not expe@ing to be called wpon to {fwear i,
I cannot take upon me to fay which.

Mr. Lane was then called and fworn, who
faid he was at the Angel, with Mifs Blandy,
and talking with her concerning her Father’s
Death, fhe afked him what he thought wcuéd

[+
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be done to her ; that he made her for Anfwer,
that fhe world be fent ta Oxford-Caltle, and be
tryed at the Affizes, and if fbe was innocent, fhe
wenld be acquitted, and if fbe was guilty, Jfhe
awould be punifbed according to Law 3 that Mifs
then ftamped on the Floor, and faid, Ob that
damned Villain Cranfton | my Henour to bim
has been my Ruin :—But why do 1 blame bim ?
1 am more to blame; that the Town Serjeant
coming in juft at that Junfure took oft his
Attention to what{he faid more.

Here the Council for the Crown, tho’ they
had many more Witnefles to call, refted their
Proof againft the Prifoner, and {he was there-
upon called to make her Defence.

Piifsner. My Lords, in my unhappy Situ-
ation, if I fhould exprels myfelf in any Terms
that may be thought improper, I hope I fhall
be forgiven ; for it will not be, I aflure your
Lordthips, with any Defign to offend. My
Lords, fome Time before my Father's Death,
I unhappily contralted an Acquaintance with
Capt. Granflon.  "This gave Offence to fome
particular Perfons, that wifhed not well to
the Repofe of our Family ; thefe Perfons hav-
ing firft prepoflefled my Father, they were
continually flling his Head with idle Stories,
to my Prejudice; and, unhappily for me, they
fo far fucceeded that from one of the moit
indulgent Parents, he grew very peevith and
diftruftful. I am extreamly paflionate, which
I muft own as a Fault, and when 1 have
found my Father, without Caufe, angry with
me, about Capt. Cranflon, I might let fall an
unguarded Expreflion, but never to with any
Injury to his Perfon, much lefs to defire his
Death; but, on the contrary, I did all that was
in my Power for his Recovery, while I was
permitted to be at Liberty to attend him in
his laft Illnefs, as the Witnefles againft me
have not denied. My Lords, the firft Steps
my Enemies took againft me in my Father’s
Illnefs was to perfuade him to forbid me his
Prefence ; then having him entirely to them-
felves, I was ordered to be clofe confined to
my Chamber, my Buckles and my Garters
were taken from me, nor was [ permitted to
have a2 Knife to cut my Viétuals, infinuating
that I might be wicked enough to deftroy my-
felf. Thus confined, my Lords, and guarded
. by Men, I was not permitted to have a Wo-
man to attend me, to do any Offices for me
proper to be done by thofe of my own Sex,
My Father being dangeroufly ill, myfelf con-

fined to my Chamber, accufed of being the
Caufe of that lllnefs, and not permitted to
fee my Farher to juftify myfelf, or fee that he
had proper Care taken of him, judge, my
Lords, how great muft be my Diftrefs | I was
almoft diftracteie, -
When my er was dead, my Guard left
me, and I was at Liberty to go where I would.
The next Day after my Father’s Death, I was
told, his Body was to be opened, and being ill
with Confinement in my Room, and not be-
ing able to bear the Shock of being in the
Houfe, during that Operation, ! took a Walk
over Henley Bridge to take the Air, but in my
Way I was infulted, a Mob raifed about me,
fo that I was obliged to go into the Angel, a
Publick Houfe, on the other Side the Bridge,
for Rhelter. When Mr, Fifber came to me, I
defired his Protection, and to go Home with
him, which I did, When I was fent to Ox-

ford Caftle, my Lords, the Mazlice of my

Enemies could not reft here, the numberlefs
Calumnies that have been invented, and in-
duftrioufly reported abroad, do abundantly
fhew ; and particularly a Pamphlet was pub-
lithed, with the Affidavits taken before the
Coroner, and all the aggravating Circum-_
ftances of this melancholy Affair, calculated
to inflame the Minds of the Publick, and
thereby prepoflefs them againft me. Ithas
been faid, that I 2m a wretched Drunkard,
a prophane Swearer, that I never went to
Chapel, contemned all holy Ordinances, and
in fhort gave myfelf up to all Kinds of Immo-
rality. Quite the reverfe of this, my Lords,
is my true Charaéter. Iam rather abftemious
than otherwife in Drinking; prophane or
immoral Difcourfe is my Averfion ; and for
my Attendance on religious Duties, the Rev.
Mr. Swinten, the Chaplain of the Prifon, can
teftify that I never negle@ed Chapel, when
my Health would permit me; for I was very
ill in Goal, and when fo, Mr, Swinten con-
ftantly attended me in my Room. But this
not being enough againft me, it was confi-
dently aflerted, that I attempted an Efcape ;
this occafioned Orders to have an Iron put on
my Leg, which Report the late High Sheriff
was convinced was malicious ; he therefore in
Perfon came and ordered it to be taken off,
and promifed 1 fhould not be fo affronted
again. I did not enjoy this Eafe long, the
Sheriff came again, and, with much Reluc-
tance, ordered another heavier Iron to be put
&) |
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on my Leg; he named a noble Lord, at
whofe Inftance, he faid it was done. I told
him I calmly fubmitted to whatever thould be
done to me, for I always made it my Rule to
obey thole that were fet over me.

I will not deny, my Lords, that I did put

fome Powder into my Father’s Water-gruel ;.

no, my Lords; I will not attempt to fave my
Life at the Expence of Truth; and I here
folemnly proteft, as I fhall anfwer it at the
great Tribunal, and God knows how foon,
that I had no evil Intent in putting the Powder
in his Water-gruel ; nor did I know it had a
poifonous Quality : It was put in to procure
his Love, and not his Death.

Then fhe defired the following Witnefles
might be call’d in her Defence.

Ann fames being {worn, faid, That fhe fre-
quently went as a Chairwoman to work at the
deceafed Mr. Blandy’s ; and being there one
Day, the heard Elizabeth Binfield fay, Damn
the black Bitch, meaning the Prifoner at the
Bar, { bope 1 jball fee ber walk up a Lader and
Wing,

/ B'Eirig afked by the King's Council when
and where it was, and who were prefent when
the Words were fpoken, the faid Adary Banis
and one Deane ; and that they were faid in the
Kitchen of the late Mr. Blandy’s Houfe, in
FHenley, but fhe could not recolleét the Day ;
but it was after Mifs Blandy was fent to Ox-
Sard Cattle,

Here Elizabeth Binfield was call'd again by
the King’s Council, and cenfronted with this
Evidence, who deny’d that {fhe had ever faid
any fuch Words, or had any ill Will againit
Mils Blandy.

Mary Banks was next call’d and {worn, who
faid, That fhe heard Elizabeth Binfield, the
Cook ‘Maid, fay, 7 bope the black Bitch will walk
up a Ladder and fwing, '

Being afked by the King's Council when,
and where the Words where fpoke, fhe faid in
Mr. Blandy’s Houfe at Henley, and on the Day
his' Body was open’d,

Here it was obferved, that there was a ma-
terial Differenee in the Evidence of thele two
Witnefles, the one {wearing pofiitively to the
IDay the Body was open’d, and the other that
the Words were faid aiter Miis Blandy was in
Oxford Caftle, which was not ull after her
Father’s Remains were buried.

Edward Hearne was next call’d and {worn,
who faid, that he had lived with the Deceafed

formerly, but was now Clerk of Henley Parith 5
that he frequently went to Mr. Blandy’s Houfe,
perhaps four or five Times a Week ; that he
always obferv’d a cordial Duty from Mifs
to her Father ; and that he never faw any
Mark of Undutifulnes or Misbehaviour to-
wards her Father.

This Witnels being crofs-examined by the
King’s Council, was ask’d, if he had not fre-
quently been to the Prifoner in Oxford Caftle ;
and whether one Time a Gentleman who came
there to fee her, did not tell her that Mr,
Cranffon was taken, and what fhe faid upon
that.

Hearne. 1 have been atOxfird Caftle feveral
Times to fee the Prifoner ; and that one Day
indeed, a Gentleman did come in, and told
Mifs that he heard Cranflen was taken ; when
the replyed, 1 am glad the Villain is taken, that
be may receive the Punifbment he deferves as well
as me.

The Prifoner’s Council then afk’d this Wit-
nefs, if in the whole Converfation at that
Time, he did not underftand the Prifoner to
mean only the Punifhment of being impri-
foned there ; and whether fhe did not at that
Time perfift in her Innocence, as to the Crime
fhe ftood charged with ; when the Witnefs
faid, that he did underftand it only as the Pu-
niflhment of being confined, and that fhe al-
ways infifted on her Innocence,

Thsmas Cawley being fworn, faid, That he
frequently vifited at Mr. Blendy’s, as Mr,
Blandyand his Daughter did his Family ; and
that he always cbferved a dutiful and affec-
tionate Carriage from Mifs to her Father.

T hamas, Stavertsn was next {worn, who faid,
That he had a Houfe next Door to the De-
ceafed, that was repairing, and therefore he, as
being acquainted in Mr. Blandy’s Family, ufed
frequently to-call there, and that he always
obferved Mifs to fhew the greateit Mark of
Duty and Affettion to her Father.

He further faid, that about four Months be-
fore the Death of Mr. Blandy, Mifs was vifi-
ting at his Houle, when fhe faid, that her Fa-
ther fhe believed would not marry again, let
what  advantagious Offers . foever be made
to him, till fuch Time as he had fettled her
in the World: And that he had ebferved for
fome Time pafl, his old Friend the Deceafed,
had fhrunk very much ; apd that he bad often
thought and faid, that he did not think his ld
Friend Mr. Blandy would live long.

: Mrs,
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Mrs. Davis, Landlady of the Angel, was
then call’d and fworn, who faid, that fhe fee-
ing Mifs Blandy going over the Bridge, with
a Mob after her, asked her where fhe was
going, when fhe made her for Anfwer, that
her Father was going to be opened, and that
fhe could not ftand the Shock, fo was taking
a Walk in the Air ; that this Witnefs then
asked her to go into her Houfe to fhelter her-
felf from the Infults of the Mob, which Mifs
accordingly did.

She was then ask’d particularly, if fhe
thought the was endeavouring to get off, and
flae {aid no, the did not, nor was it apparent to
her in any wife to think fo.

Robert Stoke was then call’d and {worn, who
faid, he being thé Town Serjeant, was order’d
to go over the Bridge to the Angel, to ftop
Mifs Blandy, the Prifoner ; that when he fpoke

to her, the {eemed very willing to return, and-

was glad of any Protettion to keep her from
the Infolence of the Mob.

He was particularly asked by the Prifoner’s
Council, if he thought the Prifoner had an
Intention to go off, he faid no, not to his
thinking, for it did not in the leaft appear fo to
him. :
The Prifoner having gone through her
Defence, the King's Council in the Reply
obferved, that the Prifoner had given no
Evidence in Contradiftion of the Faéls ef-
tablithed by the Witnefles for the Crown :
That indeed Ann Fames and Mary Banks had
fworn to an Expreflion of Elizabeth Binfield,
which, if true, ferved to fhew fome ill Wil
in Binfield towards the Prifoner; but that
there was fo material a Contradition to each
other, that he thought they deferved no Man-
ner of Credit. That the other Witnefles pro-
duced by the Prifoner, ferved only to prove,
that Mr. Blandy was a very fond, affeftionate,

and indulgent Parent, therefore there could be
no Pretence for giving him Pcwders, or any
Thing elfe, to promote in him an Affection
for his Daughter. That it had come out ia
the Examination of Fearne, one of the
Prifoner’s own Witnefies, that once when
he was in the Caftle to vifit ker, upon heanng
that Cranfion was taken, fthe broke out inte
Expreflions that amounted, he thought, te
a full Confeflion of Guilt. That however the
Prifoner’s Council might endeavour to explain
it away, he was fure no Man in his Reafon
could underftand thefe Words otherwile than
a Confeflion, { am glad the Fillain is taken, that
he may receive the Punifbment he drferves, as
well as I. That if the Jury believed the
Prifoner to be innocent, they would take
Care to acquit her ; but if on the other Hand,
they believed her to be guilty, they would
take Care to acquit their own Confcicnees.

The Prifoner defired Leave to fpeak in
Anfwer to what the King's Council had faid,
which being granted, fhe faid, the Gentle-
man was miftaken in thinking the Powders
were given to her Father to procure his Af.
fection to her, for that they were given to
procure her Father’s Love to Mr. Cranfion.

The Judge fummed up the Evidence in a
clear and impartial Manner to the _fur}', and
they without gning out af Cmirt, bi'ﬂUEh: n
their Verdict, Guilty, Death.

After Sentence of Death was pronounced
upon her, fhe in a very folemn and affeling
Manner, prayed the Court, that fhe might
have as much Time as could be allowed her,
to prepare for her great and immortal Starte,
The Court told her, fhe fhould have a conve-
nient Time allowed her; but exhorted her,
in the mean Time, to lofe not a Moment, but
inceffantly implore the Mercy of that Being, te
whom alone Mercy belongs.







